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From: Eleanor King 
Sent: 03 December 2021 15:12
To: PlanningPolicyConsultation
Cc: Bryony Stala
Subject: Local Plan 2038 Consultation Response
Attachments: Gosport Reps Ministry of Justice Merged.pdf

Good afternoon, 

On behalf of our clients the Ministry of Justice, please find attached Representations to the current Local Plan 2038 
Regulation 18 Consultation.  

I would appreciate confirmation that the attached document has been received. 

Many thanks, 

Eleanor King BA (Hons) MSc MRTPI  

Associate  

Planning  

Savills, Mountbatten House, 1 Grosvenor Square, Southampton SO15 2BZ  

Tel  

  

Mobile  

  

Email  

  

Website  
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P Before printing, think about the environment  
 
 <https://www.savills.co.uk/sectors/energy-and-sustainability.aspx?utm_source=e-
sig&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=savills-earth>  
 
 
 
NOTICE: This email is intended for the named recipient only. It may contain privileged and confidential information. If 
you are not the intended recipient, notify the sender immediately and destroy this email. You must not copy, distribute 
or take action in reliance upon it. Whilst all efforts are made to safeguard emails, the Savills Group cannot guarantee 
that attachments are virus free or compatible with your systems and does not accept liability in respect of viruses or 
computer problems experienced. The Savills Group reserves the right to monitor all email communications through its 
internal and external networks. 
 
For information on how Savills processes your personal data please see our privacy policy 
<https://www.savills.co.uk/footer/privacy-policy.aspx>   
 
Savills plc. Registered in England No 2122174. Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 
 
Savills plc is a holding company, subsidiaries of which are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
(FCA) 
 
Savills (UK) Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605138. Regulated by RICS. Registered office: 
33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 
 
Savills Advisory Services Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 06215875. Regulated by RICS. 
Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 
 
Savills Commercial Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605125. Registered office: 33 Margaret 
Street, London, W1G 0JD. 
 
Martel Maides Limited (trading as Savills). A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in Guernsey No. 18682. Registered 
office: 1 Le Truchot, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1WD . Registered with the Guernsey Financial Services Commission. 
No. 57114. 
 
We are registered with the Scottish Letting Agent Register, our registration number is LARN1902057. 
 
Please note any advice contained or attached in this email is informal and given purely as guidance unless otherwise 
explicitly stated. Our views on price are not intended as a formal valuation and should not be relied upon as such. They 
are given in the course of our estate agency role. No liability is given to any third party and the figures suggested are in 
accordance with Professional Standards PS1 and PS2 of the RICS Valuation –Global Standards (incorporating the IVSC 
International Valuation Standards) effective from 31 January 2020 together, the ''Red Book'. Any advice attached is not 
a formal ("Red Book") valuation, and neither Savills nor the author can accept any responsibility to any third party who 
may seek to rely upon it, as a whole or any part as such. If formal advice is required this will be explicitly stated along 
with our understanding of limitations and purpose. 
 
BEWARE OF CYBER-CRIME: Our banking details will not change during the course of a transaction. Should you receive a 
notification which advises a change in our bank account details, it may be fraudulent and you should notify Savills who 
will advise you accordingly.  
 



Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 
Consultation Response Form 

Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 - Regulation 18 Consultation 

REF: ___________ (for office use) 

 

 

All responses to this consultation on the draft Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 will be taken into 

account and used to prepare the next stage of the Local Plan. The Local Plan, supporting 

documents and further information can be viewed online: www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2038 

This form should be returned by email or post by Friday 3rd December 2021 

Please email to: planningpolicyconsultation@gosport.gov.uk 

or post to: Gosport Borough Council, Planning Policy, Town Hall, High Street, 

Gosport, PO12 1EB 

To discuss any queries please contact the Planning Policy Team: 

Email: planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk     Telephone: 023 9254 5461 

Your details 

Name: 

 

Organisation (if any): 

 

Address (and postcode): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Telephone: 

 

Email: 

 

Agent/Consultant details (if appointed) 

Name: 

 

Organisation (if any): 

 

Address (and postcode): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Telephone: 

Email: 

 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all. 

If you need this document in large print, on CD or tape, in Braille or in another 

language, please ask. 

Ministry of Justice

C/O Agent

Bryony Stala

Savills

Mountbatten House
1 Grosvenor Square
Southampton
SO15 2BZ



Your representation 

The draft Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 contains a vision, objectives and policies with 

explanation text. Please use the boxes to let us know what you are commenting on and whether 

you support or object along with your comments. 

Paragraph/Policy 
Number: 

 
Support/Object 

(please tick): 
   Support               Object 

Please summarise why: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

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
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Please refer to attached PDF Representation Document



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
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you need more space for comments please use another form or separate paper. 

Remember to include your name on any forms you use so we can consider your 

comments. 

How will we use your personal information? 

By completing this form you give your consent that your details will be retained to notify you of 

information relating to the production of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038.  

Please note the completed form is a public document. All completed forms will be made public on 

our website including the names of the individual/organisation who submitted them (all other 

personal information will remain confidential). 

Your information will be held securely for the purposes of the database and will not be shared with 

any other parties without first obtaining your consent. Records are kept for the lifetime of the 

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 in line with the Council’s retention policy and we will not keep 

your information longer than necessary. 

Please note you have the right to withdraw your consent to your details being held on the 

database at any time. Please notify us by emailing planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk or telephoning 

023 9254 5461. Further details on the Council’s Privacy Statement can be found online: 

www.gosport.gov.uk/dataprotectionprivacynotice  



Optional monitoring questions 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to promoting equality of opportunity and respect for 

diversity in the services we provide. The following questions are to help us understand how the 

Local Plan consultation would impact different groups of people. It is not compulsory to answer the 

questions, but voluntarily providing this information will help us to monitor how effectively we are 

talking to a range of people right across the communities we serve. 

Note: If you are answering on behalf of a community group or organisation, then you don’t 

need to complete this section. 

All information is held in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation.

1. Are you…? Please select one option 

 
 Male 
 Female 
 Other __________________________ 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
2. Is your gender identity the same as you 
were assigned at birth? Please select one 
option 
 
 Yes 
 No 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
3. What is your age? Please select one 

 
 Below 16 
16 - 24 
 25 - 34 
 35 - 44 
 45 - 54 
 55 - 64 
 65 - 74 
 75 - 84 
 85 or over 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
4. How would you describe yourself? 
Please select one option 
 
 Heterosexual or straight 
 Bisexual 
 Lesbian woman 
 Gay Man 
 Other ___________ 
 Prefer not to say 

5. Do you consider yourself to have a 
disability, or a long-term illness, physical 
or mental health condition? Please select 
one option 
 
 Yes 
 No (go to question 7) 
 
 
6. What is the nature of your disability, 
long-term limiting condition or health 
problem? Please select all that apply 
 
 Physical disability 
 Hearing disability 
 Learning disability 
 Visual disability 
 Mental ill health 
 Other (please state) 
________________________________ 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
7. Which group do you most identify with? 
Please select one option 
 
 No religion 
 Christian 
 Muslim 
 Jewish 
 Sikh 
 Buddhist 
 Hindu 
 Other religion ___________ 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
8. Are you pregnant? 
 
 Yes 
 No 
 Prefer not to say 
  



9. Have you had a child in the last 12 
months? 
 
 Yes 
 No 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
10. To which of these groups do you 
consider you belong? 
 
 Single 
 Separated 
 Married 
 Divorced 
 Widowed 
 Co-habitating 
 Same sex civil partnership 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
11. To which of these groups do you 
consider you belong? Please select one 
option 
 
White 
 English/ Welsh/ Scottish/ Northern Irish/ 
British 
 Irish 
 Gypsy or Irish Traveller 
 Eastern European 
 Other White background (please describe) 
________________________ 
 
Black / African / Caribbean / Black British 
 African 
 Caribbean 
 Any other Black / African / Caribbean 
background (please describe) 
________________________ 
 
Asian / Asian British 
 Indian 
 Pakistani 
 Bangladeshi 
 Chinese 
 Any other Asian background (please 
describe) ________________________ 
 
Mixed / multiple ethnic group 
 White and Black Caribbean  
 White and Black African  
 White and Asian  
 Any other mixed / multiple ethnic 
background (please describe)  

Other ethnic group 
 Arab 
 Any other ethnic group (please describe) 
________________________ 
 
 Prefer not to say 
 
 
12. Do you have a connection to the 

Armed Forces? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 
13. If you do have a connection to the 

Armed Forces, please choose which 

option best described that connection. 

 
 serving member of the armed forces 

 family member of someone currently 

serving 

 veteran 

 family member of a veteran 

 other (please describe) 

________________________ 

 Prefer not to say 
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1. Introduction 
 

1.1. On behalf of our client, Ministry of Justice, Savills is responding to Gosport Borough Council’s (GBC’s) 

Draft Local Plan 2038 Consultation Draft (Regulation 18), published September 2021.  

1.2. This representation relates mainly to land at the Former Haslar Immigration Removal Centre, in Gosport, 

which is proposed for development within the Plan Period and is included as a draft development allocation 

for 225 dwellings.  

1.3. For plan making the Government, through the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), revised in 

2021, requires Local Planning Authorities to plan positively and seek new opportunities for development 

with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid change.  

1.4. The current Development Plan for GBC consists of the Local Plan 2011-2029, which was adopted in 

October 2015 and replaces the ‘saved’ policies of the Gosport Borough Local Plan Review (2006). As this 

document was adopted more than five years ago it is currently considered out of date.  

1.5. For ease of reference these representations are presented in tabular form, following the sequence of the 

Draft Plan.   

Former Immigration Centre 

1.6. The site is located within the defined settlement boundary of Gosport, immediately fronting The Solent. 

The site is bounded by Dolphin Way to the north, Fort Road and residential dwellings to the west, a public 

car park to the south west and a narrow promenade and The Solent to the south east. The former Haslar 

Royal Hospital which is currently being converted is located to the north beyond Dolphin Way.  

1.7. The site measures approximately 6.5 hectares, and consists of the former Haslar Immigration Removal 

Centre. Approximately 40% of the site consists of a large open space, previously used as sports pitches. 

The topography of the site is relatively flat.  
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Figure 1.1 Site Location Plan demonstrating previously developed land (Green) and open space (Blue) 

 

1.8. The site relates well to the existing built up area, including the adjacent development site of Haslar Hospital, 

and it is in a sustainable location.  

1.9. Access into the site is via Dolphin Way, with all visitors, staff and deliveries, entering and leaving by the 

same entrance when the site was in operation. Other access around the periphery of the site is restricted 

by either brick walls or metal fences which are reinforced to provide additional security for the site. 

1.10. Within the site there are a number of buildings of varying age and type, which served as offices, 

dormitories, greenhouses, communal buildings, leisure or faith spaces, workshops and kitchens, whilst the 

centre was in operation. Hard surfaced areas surround these buildings, and they are separated from the 

open space by a gated, reinforced metal fence. There are currently no statutorily designated listed 

buildings on site, however some buildings are deemed to have local interest, these are as follows: 

 Former Office Quarters 

 Water Tower 

 6 Former Barracks 

 Wall and attached buildings 

 Two buildings flanking Parade Ground 
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1.11. Discussions relating to the future development of the site have been held with GBC Officers since 2019. 

Currently the future use of the site is unknown, however it is promoted for allocation within the emerging 

Local Plan for around 225 dwellings.  
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3. Conclusion 
 

3.1. This Statement has provided representations to Gosport Borough Council’s (GBC’s) Regulation 18 Draft 

Local Plan consultation, published in September 2021 on behalf of Ministry of Justice, and in support of 

the site promotion at the Former Haslar Immigration Removal Centre, Gosport.  

3.2. Discussions relating to the future development of the site have been held with GBC Officers since 2019. 

Currently the future use of the site is unknown, however it is promoted for allocation within the emerging 

Local Plan for around 225 dwellings. The Former Haslar Immigration Removal centre offers the opportunity 

for a residential-led development in a sustainable location along the Gosport waterfront. This is recognised 

within the local plan which allocates the site for development in Draft Policy SS7, as part of the Gosport 

Harbour Regeneration Area.  

3.3. Whilst there is support for many policies within the Draft Local Plan consultation documents, these 

representations have raised concerns regarding some of the details contained within the policies.  

3.4. Most significantly there are concerns relating to the proposed departure from the Government’s published 

standard methodology for housing need, which does not appear to be robustly evidenced by GBC’s 

published documents.  

3.5. Secondly many of the policies contained within the plan include repetition of other policies, meaning that 

the Draft does not appear to be prepared in accordance with Paragraph 16 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) (2021) which states: 

Plans should: 

A. be prepared with the objective of contributing to the achievement of sustainable development11; 

B. be prepared positively, in a way that is aspirational but deliverable; 

C. be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and communities, 

local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and operators and statutory consultees; 

D. contain policies that are clearly written and unambiguous, so it is evident how a decision maker should 

react to development proposals; 

E. be accessible through the use of digital tools to assist public involvement and policy presentation; and 

F. serve a clear purpose, avoiding unnecessary duplication of policies that apply to a particular area 

(including policies in this Framework, where relevant).   

[NPPF, 2021, Paragraph 16] 
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3.6. Finally, although pre-application discussions have been held with GBC and a policy is included within the 

Draft Local Plan for future development at the site, proposals have not been formally submitted. Therefore 

there are still a number of unknowns at the site, including costs associated with proposals, the exact 

quantum and mix of dwellings, sales values that could be achieved, and the potential for retention or re-

use of the heritage assets at the site. As a result, minor modifications to the proposed wording of policies 

within the Draft Local Plan are sought to ensure that viable future proposals can come forward at the site 

and unlock the potential, and public benefits that a proposal will deliver.  

3.7. These amendments include the removal of specific reference to heritage assets at the site and the inclusion 

of the current use (Use Class C2A) within the policy wording. Whilst it is and will be important to retain any 

heritage value at the site, it is recommended that precise details regarding the age or importance of the 

buildings at the site is removed from the Local Plan, as this needs further investigation.  

3.8. The policy currently states either Use Classes C2 or C3 could come forward at the site. The most recent 

use of the site as an Immigration Centre falls within Use Class C2A (secure residential institutions). It is 

therefore recommended that this use is included within Policy SS7 to reflect the existing use of the site 

and allow for continued or extended use of the current facilities.  

3.9. In conclusion, the inclusion of the revised wording has been suggested in order to allow for future flexibility 

in relation to proposals at the site, which would all be considered at a planning application stage.  

  






